OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, July 25, 2006
SAU Office

6:30 p.m.
Personnel Committee

Board Meeting Immediately Following

MINUTES
Board Administration
Beverly Bacon, Ray Cote, Keith Burke, Supt.
Mary Allen, Butch Estey, Marian Alese, BA
Tom Welden, Stewart Brock, Susan Dell, CVHS
Dan Harper, Bill McKinnon, Susan Copley, PES
Bart Goodeve, Craig Hicks, Tim Iwanowicz, GES
Arthur Knight, Gail Cromwell Gib West, CVHS

Linda Potter, SpEd.

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required)

a. July 11, 2006
Bill McKinnon said that on the bottom of page 2 and top of page 3 he would like the minutes to
reflect that it is not a scientific association but that it is a medical association.
Ray Cote said that it is what he said so that it stands as written. Bill McKinnon added that on page
three, line eleven, it states @art Goodeve said that we should fact check that the doctors listed
have indeed backed the information provided.O Bill said that he takes this statement as an assault
on his integrity. Bill added that only after the meeting did Bart come to Bill to apologize for this
implication. Bart said that he did not mean to sound that he was attacking Bill McKinnon®
integrity. Bill said that he wished Bart apologized publicly.
Tom Welden asked for any additional comments.
Ray Cote motioned to accept the minutes of the July 11, 2006 meeting. Butch Estey
second. Gail abstained from the vote. All else in favor.

3. Public Comment
None.

4. Superintendent® Report and Presentation of Business
a. Field Trip Proposals (Board Vote Required)
1. South Meadow School will travel to Ferry Beach ME from September 11 b 15,
2006, for the fifth grade environmental camp to study the ocean



2. South Meadow School will travel to Washington DC from June 4 b 8, 2007, for
the American Heritage Tour
Mary Allen motioned to accept the two field trip proposals listed. Stewart Brock second.
All in favor.

b. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required)

1. South Meadow School has received from Lilypons Water Gardens, a donation of
$1000 for the purpose of establishing raised beds and an artificial pond in front of
the greenhouse.

2. South Meadow School has received from Stop & Shop a donation of $503.30 as
part of the A+ Bonus Bucks program to be used for various student activities

Beverly Bacon motioned to accept the gifts or donations listed. Stewart Brock second. All
in favor.

c. Personnel (Board Vote Required) Please bring your agenda with you.
Keith Burke said the items are listed in the Personnel agenda for the Boards approval.
Dan Harper motioned to accept the nominations, resignations and retirements.
Arthur Knight second.
All in favor.

d. Monthly Events Calendar

Tom Welden distributed his Time Line D Short List. (See Attachment)

Sue Dell said that over the course of the school year, 20 -25 students will participate in VHS
(Virtual High School). During the first year the teacher has to train for the first semester and teach
the second. Therefore, the number of seats available has been cut in half this year only. We are
sharing the program with Wilton-Lyndeborough this year. Keith said that we might be able to
increase the student participation second semester. He will look into. Craig Hicks asked why we
have a limited course selection. Sue Dell said that was because the registration for participation
began before CVHS was underway. Sue Dell added that all of our students got their first choice.
Ray Cote asked what the selections were. Sue Dell said that Mandarin Chinese, Zoology, and
Nuclear Physics are among some of the courses chosen. Gail Cromwell asked why we aren®
participating in the tutorial on-line courses available to students. Bill McKinnon said that those
companies are in the business of recording college lectures and making the recordings available.
They are excellent and could be a supplement. Keith said that it plays into alternative ways
students can gain credit. Controls would need to be in place for supervision and proper support.
Craig Hicks asked how the thirteen students got chosen. Sue Dell said that CVHS sent out a letter
to students who demonstrated independent capabilities with information on the courses. We then
provided them with information on how to participate and asked for their top three choices. The
students were called and asked for a confirmation on their commitment. Craig asked if everybody
that pursued it got to participate in the program. Sue Dell said that everyone did.

Stewart Brock said that as a Board we talked about being more proactive in communicating. It
was agreed that quarterly meetings would be held. In addition, web pages would be updated
regularly.

Ray Cote said that he would like to get a more proactive way of distributing Board agendas and
minutes. The idea of this was that you have people that could be better be informed about areas
of their interest. Qist ServeOwas a topic Ray was open to discuss. Stewart said that being
proactive is important and that the ball will remain in the air. Gail Cromwell said that in Temple
they have a sign-up email list that the individual will automatically get the information on topics of
interest. With regard to communications, Tom Welden said that official minutes would be taken for
individual meetings to better provide information on those meetings.



Gail Cromwell said that on the Technical programs, Keith is going to give a presentation. With
reference to the three schools meeting yearly and that the requirements are met with the State
when the Technology Director attends the meeting, she suggests that the chairs attend that
meeting.
Tom asked Board members to please make him aware of things to be added or deleted on the
short list.

5. Old Business

a. Wellness Policy

1. GBEBA

Beverly Bacon asked that on the draft, the fifth bullet down says that certain beverages will not be
available during the school day. She asked that if at 2:30, when school concludes, these
beverages could be purchased. Keith said that during football games there could be some
latitude. Beverly also asked that under the guidelines, relative to the nutritional quality of the food,
she can get access to what her middle school child purchases but that she cannot do the same for
her high school student. She said that she would like to know what her child is purchasing.
Beverly also asked about the time set aside for students to eat breakfast and lunch. Keith said that
the kids come in and eat and then move out. Beverly asked how long elementary school students
have to eat lunch. Sue Copley said that students have twenty minutes to eat lunch and then they
have time for recess.
Butch asked referencing page seven, the third bullet from the bottom, if our people are already
certified or is this something new. Marian said that we have one food service director and she
believes that she is either certified or in the process of. Butch thought that there might be multiple.
Keith said that it is a good catch, we have only one. Butch asked if we are doing away with the
cupcakes for birthdays. Marian said that it is the goal of the fed®. Keith said that this is not our
idea, but what we are reading is correct. As time goes on, we will see where things fall. Ray Cote
said that the U.K. is going through a similar thing right now. Ray asked what the enforcement of
this is going to be. When it started in a reasonable place replacing soda with fruit juice it made
sense.
Shelly Nelkens said that it would be nice if the Board were a little more supportive of healthy foods.
She finds it sad and disturbing with the behavior of the Board. Ray Cote said that he is not making
fun of healthy foods. It makes a difference what we put in our machines or offers in the cafZ. If a
parent chooses to send in cupcakes that is a personal choice. Marian said that we have a couple
of years to implement this. She feels that several revisions will be made before this goes into
place. She is unsure how we are going to monitor the sodium content of pizza for example. The
hope is that we don®have to run around with monitors, that kids will make this choice naturally.
Arthur Knight said that we have to look at the reality of what kids eat daily. You can put healthy
foods in the schools but we are not going to change lifestyles by changing the choices. It is up to
the parents to determine what the kids are going to eat. We can do what we have to do within the
confines of the mandate. Keith said that it is designed to create awareness. Craig said thatitis a
way of saying that the schools can make people aware. It is the intent that we are putting out the
right foot.
Marsha Morrow, Monadnock Ledger, asked how this might be taught in the Health Curriculum in
the classrooms. Shelly Nelkens asked if this concerned itself with physical activity as well. She
suggested that the teachers could take a Tai Chi class and the students could join in. The
students will be better learners.
Bill McKinnon asked about the daily physical education. He would like to know where it stands
with the thoughts of Tai Chi. Tom said that the policy itself states regulations. We can look at it to
broaden. Bill said that we said that we would look into and he feels that we should. Tom agreed to
add it to the list.
Craig Hicks motioned to accept the policy on wellness. Beverly second. All in favor.

b. Substance Policies
1. JFCH



2. JFCHA
3. JECI
4. JICH

Keith Burke said that he gave out all of the policies relative to substance abuse. They suggest that
we delete all of the policies with the exception of JICH. There is a sample on the Department of
Education® website. The School Board Association recommends dropping all else. Dan Harper
said if we adopt only JICH then we don®have a smoking policy. Keith said that there is an RSA
prohibiting smoking. Bart Goodeve said that if all we are left with is JICH don® we eliminate
working on other levels other than enforcement. Bill McKinnon said that we would otherwise be
acting as scientists and we are not.

Keith said that if you look at JICH it provides flexibility, which may include long-term suspension,
expulsion, counseling, and rehabilitation. Bart Goodeve said that he doesn®see much latitude if
we suspend a student or expel them. We are missing the educational opportunities here. Craig
Hicks said that we are going to have a policy on how we are going to deal with these things. We
are going to be more successful with the educational piece. Craig said that we not only have to
enforce it but we need to set some guidelines. If a student is in possession or under the influence
there is no repercussion. If they distribute then something else is done. Gail said that she is
relieved that the Board recommends the elimination of the other policies other than JICH. There is
one difference she would like to point out. The administration really takes charge of the situation
and deals with it. She is pleased that the Board is removed from dealing with individual situations.
Mary Allen said that she is concerned with the smoking. She feels that smoking is going to Kill
many of our kids. If we are trying to revamp policy, they need to be addressed in one place so that
cross-referencing is not necessary. Mary added that it is an excellent point that nothing is said
about possession. It is handicapping the administration. Stewart said that if we look further
(QossessionQs mentioned. Sue Dell said that in JFCI and JFCI-R were the result of work done in a
survey looking at what influences some of our policies were having on the behavior of our athletes.
We spent two years looking at drug and alcohol abuse. She thought that this was done as a
community effort to identify problems and to get them out of the schools. Also, it was designed to
provide support to the students affected by this. Bart said that he has a hard time eliminating the
wide variety of approaches from the policy. He supports the existing policy. Craig Hicks said that
he understands the advise from the School Board Association but he thought that we should leave
in the information in the original policy. Tom Welden suggested that a sub-committee get together
to further work on this policy. He said that he knows that Christy is interested in this topic. He
suggested work be done and information be brought to the next meeting. Bill McKinnon said that
he is unsure how many Board members have read the policy. Too much stuff is in the policy. He
is in favor of streamlining our policy. Tom Welden agreed but that he didn®want to leave out
major things. Butch Estey agreed to form a committee to reshape this policy. Tom said that the
Superintendent of Hudson is working on a policy also. He has been in email contact. They are
working on their policy and the possibility of drug dogs entering the schools. A member of the
press asked if we were interested in drug dog searches. Tom Welden said that they are looking at
the legalities and looking at a broad spectrum of things. Mary Allen asked if JFCR gives us the
right to do drug dog searches. Tom said that we want to be current

with the law. Butch said that we are trying to raise the awareness that we know there is a problem
out there and we want to put things in place to address the problem and better serve the schools
and the students. Linda Potter said that every time a student becomes court involved, special
education automatically becomes involved. Gib West asked about those students that get fined for
smoking. Linda said that smoking is a violation that special education does not become involved.
Shelly Nelkens asked why cigarette smoking does not trigger special education involvement. Gib
West said that what triggers special education is not school board policy; it is the legal N.H. State
law policy.

c. Technology Subcommittee Report BRay Cote



Tom Welden said that a committee meeting took place all of last week. Ray Cote said that about
twenty people met from various schools for eight hours per day to work on the technology plan.
He said that he attended two of the days. There was a ground rule set at the beginning that what
is said in the tech committee plan stays there. They broke into subcommittees. There is a plan to
work for several more days in August. The plan is to have a completed technology plan in place
by December. Budget issues should be addressed by December. It is a three-year plan he
believes. Tom said that he was provided with rough draft reports that were not proofed therefore
they will not be circulated. They are working documents and will be distributed when complete.

d. Trust Fund Status PBart Goodeve
Will report on at a later date.

e. High School Graduation Requirements Status Report
Beverly Bacon said that the group met this morning. She said that there is a legality question
about credit requirements to meet graduation requirements. The next meeting is scheduled for
August 22"

f. Internal Report
Tom Welden said that this is an internal audit. Bart Goodeve and Gail Cromwell have brought this
up in the past. Gail said that we have school board policies and we don®have a way to know if the
policies are being followed. Internal Audit does not refer to financial policies. It is to verify and
investigate if the board policies are being followed. Should we set up an internal audit committee?
It is a standard procedure for many boards. It would be a subcommittee of the board and it would
do what is necessary to be informed if policies are being followed. Tom asked Gail to frame it out
to identify what we would accomplish in implementing this with examples provided. This will be
brought back to the Board on August 29™.
Bill McKinnon said that with regard to attachment # 3, pg. 11 of the minutes. He did not receive
this document until the last board meeting. Under Maturally occurring fluoride levelsO Bennington
is listed with a percentage. He searched the N.H. D.E.S. website for data. They state that fluoride
concentrations over 4.0 % are a health risk and causes staining of teeth and skeletal issues. If
anyone understood this at the last meeting, it would be of concern when voting. Tom Welden said
that these figures might not have been accurate. Bill McKinnon said that therefore we might have
based our decision on inaccurate information. Tom confirmed that that might be possible and it
happens often. Shelly said that a lot of the information provided was inaccurate and the Boards
decision was based on that information.

6. New Business
Gail Cromwell brought up the paperless distribution of information. SMS did this last year on their
own with the distribution of their newsletter. What can we do to encourage this further? Keith said
that at the August 29" ™9 \ve would discuss communication.

7. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)
Marian certified that manifests 159 163 totaling $ 137,385.08 and manifests 4,5,6 totaling
$ 71,709.66 as well as Payroll 2 totaling $ 170,739.68 have been reviewed by me and found to be
proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received
and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.
Craig Hicks motioned to accept the approval of the manifests. Arthur Knight second. Allin
favor.

Dan Harper is going to be the Board representative for the GBS Principal search. The good news
is many good candidates have applied. Bill McKinnon asked if there were any internal candidates.
Tom confirmed that there were two.

8. Non-Piubhlic Session: RSA 91-A:3.lic



Dan Harper motioned to go into non-public session for purposes of two personnel issues at
8:30 pm. All in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda L. Marschok



